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Inquiry No. 1  

Is the term Testing as used throughout this RFP in many of the Sections such as 
Section 1.2, 1.3, 2.5, 4.2.5 & Attachment “A”, annual testing only?  
 
a) Most elevator service providers include the testing in their service agreement. Is 
the testing covered under the State’s elevator maintenance agreement?  
 
b) Is “Inspection” as used in Attachment “A” under the first heading “Overview/ 
Purpose” intended to include both inspection and testing?   
 
c) Is the term “Test” as used in Section 2.5 under “High Rise, Low Rise, Hydraulic 
Unit, Escalator, Dumbwaiter, Handicapped Lift, Counterweight Safeties, Unit with 
Windup Safety Devices, Rack & Pinion Unit & Traction” intended to include testing 
twice a year or testing once a year with 2 code inspections twice a year? 
 
d) Are the 5 year full load tests conducted by your elevator service provider?  If not, 
is there a separate contract or how are they arranged for?  
 

  Response to Inquiry No. 1 

  a). The temporary and final acceptance tests, as well as the full load test, are 
       to be conducted by the elevator maintenance contractor. 
 
  b). Yes. 
 
  c). Inspections are required twice per year.  Testing is required once per 
       year or more frequently as determined by the owner of the building and 
       requested in writing by the Office of State Buildings or the Office of Risk 
       Management. 
 
  d). Yes. 
 
Inquiry No. 2  
 

Is the terminology “test and inspection” in Section 2.5 under “Escalator”, and “Tasks 
and Services” as used in Attachment “A” intended to include Step Skirt Indexing & 
Comb Plate Impact Test as required by ASME A17.1?   If so, who is to provide the 
tools? 

 

  Response to Inquiry No. 2 

 Any/all tasks required by ASME 17.1 are to be performed under this contract.   
 All tools and other equipment needed to conduct these tasks shall be 
 furnished by the inspection contractor. 

 

 

 

 



Inquiry No. 3  

For installations,   
 
a) Who is responsible for performing testing included in Section 2.5 heading 
“Temporary Acceptance Test”, the installer of the equipment or the contractor? 
 
b) Who is responsible for performing testing included in Section 2.5 heading “Final 
Acceptance Test” under, the installer of the equipment or the contractor? 
 

  Response to Inquiry No. 3 

 The elevator maintenance contractor performs both tests. 

Inquiry No. 4  

Will the contractor be required to write the specification on each new installation & 
modernization for the State or simply be capable of doing so as set forth in Section 
2.5 under the heading Plan Review?  

a) The pricing tables only reflect installation and modernization inspections 12 times 
per year but the table shows 50 modernization inspections per year.  Please clarify.   

b) Would the contractor be required to provide specifications for 12 units or 62 units 
(Lines 11 & 12 on Attachment “C” Cost Proposal)?  Please clarify   
 
c) Is this a per building requirement or a per elevator requirement? 

 

  Response to Inquiry No. 4 

  a,b). Plan review and guideline specifications are to be performed as 
  requested by the owner of the building and requested in writing by the Office 
  of State Buildings or the Office of Risk Management.  Therefore, there is no 
   direct correlation between the figures indicated for this item and those for 
  final acceptance tests for new/modernized units in Attachment C. 
 
  c). Typically this requirement applies per elevator, but may instead apply per 
  building if deemed practical. 

  

Inquiry No. 5  

Does the terminology “Temporary Acceptance” as used in Section 2.5 require 
specifications on the 19 units estimated on Attachment “C” Line item 10? 

 

  Response to Inquiry No. 5 

  Plan review and guideline specifications are to be performed as requested by 
  the owner of the building and requested in writing by the Office of State 
  Buildings or the Office of Risk Management.  Therefore, there is no direct 
  correlation between the figures indicated for this item and those for 
  temporary final acceptance tests for new/modernized units in Attachment C. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Inquiry No. 6  

Are the tests listed in Section 2.5 under the heading “Firefighter’s Service” to be 
performed monthly (as required by ASME ANSI A17.1), once a year, or twice a year? 
If not monthly, who will be performing the monthly test pursuant to the code? 

 
  Response to Inquiry No. 6 
 

 ANSI 17.1 recommends this service be conducted once every 12 months.   
 Therefore, no monthly service will be conducted 

Inquiry No. 7  

Is the requirement of 5 certified inspectors contained in Section 3.0 restricted to 
inspectors in this scope of work or may it include certified inspectors in the United 
States? 
 

  Response to Inquiry No. 7 

 Per Section 3.1, Item 2.b, the elevator inspection contractor is to have 
 on staff at all times a minimum of 5 certified inspectors (per ASME QEI-1) 
 available and assigned to perform the requirements of the contract.  It is 
 acceptable if the inspection contractor employs additional QEIs throughout 
 the United States and wished to transfer/rotate one or more of them to 
 Louisiana in order to perform the work, so long as the minimum of 5 QEIs 
 present and available is always maintained. 

Inquiry No. 8  

Does the scheduling provided in  Attachment “A” under the heading Task & Services 
in the 4th paragraph require the contractor to schedule inspections with the current 
elevator service company if the current elevator service company is not 
simultaneously providing any services? 
 

  Response to Inquiry No. 8 

 The maintenance contractor is to perform the full load test under the watch of 
 the inspection contractor. 

 The inspection contractor shall be capable and competent to perform the 
 required no-load safety test without the elevator maintenance contractor 
 being present. 

Inquiry No. 9  

Who will be responsible to repair vertical transportation equipment should the unit 
become inoperable due to a failure in the elevator system during testing procedures?   

 
  Response to Inquiry No. 9 
 

 Each individual state agency, through its elevator maintenance contracts, is 
 responsible for effecting all necessary repairs. 

Inquiry No. 10  

Is the requirement of di-electric breakdown tests on all motors & generators 
contained in Attachment “A” under the heading Task & Services duplicated in the 
State’s contract with the current elevator service provider ?  In Attachment “C” why 
are di-electric tests included in Line item 1 & 2 and then repeated again in Line item 
14?   

 



  Response to Inquiry No. 10 
  

 Such tests might not necessarily be included in every elevator maintenance 
 services contract for every building. 

 Those in Line 14 of Attachment C are those tests conducted outside of the 
 scope of those referenced in Lines 1 and 2. 

Inquiry No. 11  

Who will be switching the buildings power service over from permanent power to 
emergency power for the purposes of the following tests set forth in Attachment “A” 
under the heading Task & Services, and will these tests be performed during working 
hours: 
 
a) the emergency power operation test?  
 
b) the test of fire fighter service Phase I & II under emergency power? 

c) testing of firefighter’s service.  Will this test be performed by activating the key 
switch on Phase I or are these test to be conducted during the buildings life safety 
fire alarm test? 

  Response to Inquiry No. 11 

 The agency is required to coordinate and ensure the appropriate personnel 
 are on site to perform the tasks listed above. 

Inquiry No. 12  

Are any codes expected to be enforced other than: ANSI A17.3, ANSI A17.2, ANSI 
A18.1, ANSI A17.4, and ANSI 117.1. 

  Response to Inquiry No. 12 

 NFPA 70, NFPA 72, and/or the International Building Code may also apply. 

Inquiry No. 13  

What code year will be enforced for all ASME ANSI Standards? 
  

  Response to Inquiry No. 13 

 All Elevators are governed by the code of the year they were installed. 

 Additionally, 

 All elevators are required to meet the A17.3 Code for Existing Elevators. 

 New and Modernized elevators are to meet the latest edition of the code 
 which is A17.1 - 2010. 

 Existing elevators are inspected and maintained by the latest edition of the 
 code.  A17.1 - 2010. 

Inquiry No. 14  

Because the contractor must perform a compliance visit within 90 days of the initial 
inspections under the terms of Attachment “A” under the heading Task & Services, 
may the contractor charge the State for each 90 day visit until all violations are 
corrected?  



 
  Response to Inquiry No. 14 

  The inspector is only required to make one 90-day re-inspection visit, after  
  which time he/she is to follow the procedure outlined below. 

 Per the Tasks and Services section of the RFP:  

 When deficiencies are noted in a regular inspection, the contractor will make 
 a compliance visit within 90 calendar days of the initial inspection to verify 
 that all deficiencies have been corrected. 

 Inspection contractor shall notify the State Fire Marshal’s Office of all 
 deficiencies that are found non-compliant after the 90 day re-inspection. 

 Inspection contractor shall contact the Office of the State Fire Marshal, within 
 ten (10) business days of finding unresolved deficiencies during the re-
 inspection, on behalf of the building owner and/or ORM to obtain direction on 
 such issues.  

Inquiry No. 15  

In Attachment “C” do the totals listed under the column Average # of Units include 
the 2 inspections (Annual & Semi Annual)?  For example are there 1,187 actual 
hydraulic units to be inspected or are there half as many? 

  Response to Inquiry No. 15 

 The average figures presented in the table were taken from the totals of each 
 complete fiscal year (2010-2011 and 2011-2012) during which 2 inspections 
 per year were conducted. 

Inquiry No. 16  

Is the number of winding drum safety devices contained in Attachment “C” Line item 
8 an accurate number?  

  Response to Inquiry No. 16 

 All figures presented in Attachment C are averages based on the totals of 
 each complete fiscal year (2010-2011 and 2011-2012) during which 2 
 inspections per year  were conducted. 

Inquiry No. 17  

Is the number of full load tests safety devices contained in Attachment “C” Line item 
15 an accurate number?  

  Response to Inquiry No. 17 

 All figures presented in Attachment C are averages based on the totals of 
 each complete fiscal year (2010-2011 and 2011-2012) during which 2 
 inspections per year  were conducted. 

 

 

 

 

 



Inquiry No. 18  

How was the number of firefighter’s service certifications derived?   

  Response to Inquiry No. 18 

  All figures presented in Attachment C are averages based on the totals of  
  each complete fiscal year (2010-2011 and 2011-2012) during which 2   
  inspections per year were conducted. 

Inquiry No. 19  

Are any deviation allowed on insurance coverage and indemnification allowed 
(Section 3.12)? 

a) Would the state consider adding the following clause to the contract: “The 
obligation to defend as provided above in the indemnity shall be interpreted on a 
proportional basis.” 

 
b) Which are the correct insurance requirements and limit:  those listed in the 

Sample contract under the heading “Insurance” or those detailed in “Exhibit B”? 
 

 
c) Is Insurance Form ACORD 25 an acceptable substitute for Insurance Form CG 00 

01? 
  
d) Why are there no coverage requirement for Errors & Omissions Coverage for 

certified inspectors or Professional Liability Coverage? 
 

  Response to Inquiry No. 19 

 No. No deviations on insurance or indemnification language will be accepted. 

 a). No, this language is unacceptable. 
 
 b). Those detailed in Exhibit B will be incorporated into the contract. 
 
 c). The certificate of insurance can be submitted on an Acord 25 form.  The 
      CG form referenced is the insurance policy form that must be used (or an 
       equivalent in terms and coverage). 

 
 d). Professional liability coverage has been added.  See revised Attachment B. 

 

Inquiry No. 20  

Can the contract be negotiated to include the following alternative remedies at law? 

a) mediation 

b) binding arbitration 

  Response to Inquiry No. 20 

  The statutes listed define the remedy. No other types of remedies are   
  acceptable for this contract.  

 

 

 



Inquiry No. 21  

Can the Sample contract be negotiated to allow the contractor 48 hours notice of an 
audit? 

  Response to Inquiry No. 21 

 The State will provide appropriate notice to the contractor when exercising 
 the option to audit. 

Inquiry No. 22  

May a corporate tax form, (Form 1120 US Corporation Income Tax Return) for the 
most current year filed be used in lieu of an Audited Financial Statement? 

  Response to Inquiry No. 22 

 See Addendum A. 

Inquiry No. 23  

Why are elevator maintenance companies allowed to participate in this RFP?  

  Response to Inquiry No. 23 

 Section 3.14: Conflict of Interest provides that if an award is made to an 
 elevator maintenance contractor to perform elevator inspections under this 
 contract, that contractor must not enter into any contract with the State of 
 Louisiana or any State agency to perform elevator maintenance during the 
 term of this elevator inspection contract, or this contract shall be terminated. 

Inquiry No. 24  

How many units are to be inspected under the estimate?  

  Response to Inquiry No. 24 

 Attachment “C” provides average estimated total inspections that will be 
 called for under the contract. 

Inquiry No. 25  

How many copies of the completed RFP will the State need? 

  Response to Inquiry No. 25 

 Per Section 4.1 of the RFP: 

 One original proposal shall be submitted to the RFP Coordinator at the 
 address specified. An additional three copies of the proposal should also be 
 submitted to the RFP Coordinator at the address specified. At least one (1) 
 copy of the proposal shall contain original signatures of those company 
 officials or agents duly authorized to sign proposals or contracts on behalf of 
 the organization using the Certification Statement Attachment “D”. The 
 original should be clearly marked or differentiated from the copies. A certified 
 copy of a board resolution granting such authority should be submitted if 
 proposer is a corporation. The copy of the proposal with original signatures 
 will be retained for incorporation in any contract resulting from this RFP. 

 

 


